1968

Ludvig v. Mikkelsen, Marie Mikkelsen and Charles  
L. Johnson v. Utah State Tax Commission and  
Weber County Board of Equalization, William S.  
Moyes, Chairman : Brief of Appellants

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF CASE

The appellants herein, pursuant to Section 59-7-2 UCA 1953, made application for a Real Property Tax Abatement. When County Board of Equalization indicated that for the year 1967 that Senate Bill 30, passed by the 1967 Utah Legislature, was to be the law applied for Tax Abatements rather than the prior section 59-7-2 UCA 1953, the appellants herein brought a petition for permanent injunction and restraining order, together with this class action for a declaratory judgment to have Senate Bill 30 declared unconstitutional; or, in the alternative, that the court clarify Senate Bill 30 in its application to the appellants. The State Tax Commission moved to have Senate Bill 30 sustained in its present form, and the

Weber County Board of Equalization requested clarification of Senate Bill 30.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The case was tried to the court, Honorable John F. Wahlquist presiding, on the 19th day of June, 1967, at which hearing the court sustained the constitutionality of Senate Bill 30 (59-7-2 UCA 1967), dissolved the temporary restraining order, and issued judicial instructions for clarification of the statute. The Court signed its Finding of Facts and Conclusions of Law on September 23, 1967. The Court signed its decree on September 23, 1967, which decree was entered on the records of the County Clerk on September 27, 1967.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The appellants herein submit that the decision of the District Court should be reversed and Senate Bill 30 (59-7-2 UCA 1967) should be declared unconstitutional, or that portions thereof should be declared unconstitutional; or, in the alternative, that the statute should be judicially determined to be applied to all persons of the class contained therein and the County Board of Equalization ordered to grant to all persons who qualify, without any arbitrary discretion.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The appellants herein over the age of 65 years made application to the Weber County Board of Equalization for tax abatement pursuant to Section 59-7-2 UCA 1953. The County Board of Equalization, under instructions of the Utah State Tax Commission, applied 59-7-2 UCA 1953 as amended by the laws of the State of Utah 1967, which law did not become effective until May 9, 1967, even though the new law by its own terms required all applications for tax abatement to be filed with the County Board of Equalization prior to May 1, of each year. The appellants herein obtained a temporary restraining order, which temporary restraining order was dissolved at the June 19, 1967 hearing by Honorable John F. Wahlquist. The appellants Ludvig V. Mikkelsen receive as their sole means of sustenance the sum of \$1,656.00 per year, which equals \$138.00 per month. The sum of \$138.00 is the maximum total amount to be paid to two persons under the regulations of the Utah State Welfare Department. Mr. and Mrs. Mikkelsen receive \$90.63 from the Social Security Administration per month and \$47.37 per month from the Weber County Public Welfare Department, thus producing the sum

of \$138.00 per month.

Appellant Charles L. Johnson for the year 1966 received the sum of \$1,020.00, being computed at the rate of \$86.00 per month, the maximum living allowance prescribed by the regulations of the Utah State Department of Public Welfare. The \$86.00 monthly payment is composed of \$49.90 from Weber County Public Welfare, and the balance of \$36.10 comes from the Social Security Administration.

Section 59-7-2 as amended by the 1967 Legislature provides in substance that tax abatements may be made only to persons over the age of 65 years, except in cases of extreme hardship and if such person is totally disabled, and whose income is less than \$1,500.00 per year and whose property, where they reside, has a market or appraised value of less than \$10,000.00. Appellant Johnson has income of less than \$1,500 per year but he receives a major source of his income from Utah Public Welfare Grants. The appellants Mikkelsens have income in excess of \$1,500.00 per year their income is computed jointly, as was required by the Utah State Tax Commission's regulations in determining whether a person had income in excess of \$1,500.00 per year.



The Trial Court made specific finding that Mr. Johnson did not qualify for tax abatement, and that the matter of Mr. and Mrs. Mikkelsen should be referred back to Weber County Board of Equalization, even though the court specifically found all appellants to be indigent.

The Weber County Board of Equalization, after the court's bench ruling of June 19, 1967, proceeded to deny any tax abatement, not only to appellant Johnson, but also to appellants Mikkelsen even though the court specifically found that income of two persons should be apportioned in determining the \$1,500.00 per person limit on income.

Appellants Mikkelsen appealed the denial to the Utah State Tax Commission, which appeal was heard on August 23, 1967, at which hearing it was ruled that a recommendation be forwarded to Weber County Board of Equalization granting the tax abatement. This has never been accomplished by the Utah State Tax Commission.

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

#### POINT I

SENATE BILL 30'S CLASSIFICATION OF INDIVIDUALS ON THE BASIS OF WHETHER THEY RECEIVE A MAJOR PORTION OF THEIR INCOME FROM WELFARE GRANTS OR WHETHER THEY HAVE AN INCOME OF UNDER \$1,500.00 A YEAR IS ARBITRARY AND IN VIOLATION OF

THE EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSE OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT  
AND THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF UTAH.

POINT II

SENATE BILL NO. 30 BY ITS TERMS IS INAPPLICABLE TO  
THE YEAR 1967.

POINT III

THE WEBER COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION REFUSED TO  
COMPLY WITH THE ORDER OF THE DISTRICT COURT IN APPORTIONING  
INCOME OF APPELLANTS LUDVIG V. MIKKELSEN AND MARIE MIKKELSEN  
BUT RATHER APPLIED THE STANDARDS OF THE STATE TAX COMMISSION  
REQUIRING ALL INCOME OF ALL PERSONS BE USED TO DETERMINE  
ELIGIBILITY FOR ABATEMENT

ARGUMENT

POINT I

SENATE BILL 30'S CLASSIFICATION OF INDIVIDUALS ON  
THE BASIS OF WHETHER THEY RECEIVE A MAJOR PORTION OF THEIR  
INCOME FROM WELFARE GRANTS OR WHETHER THEY HAVE AN INCOME  
OF UNDER \$1,500.00 A YEAR IS ARBITRARY AND IN VIOLATION OF  
THE EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSE OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT  
AND THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF UTAH.

Senate Bill 30 was passed as an Amendment to section  
59-7-2 Utah Code Ann 1953 and reads in a pertinent part as  
follows:

(The County Board of Equalization) may remit or abate taxes of any indigent person to an amount not exceeding \$40.00 but not more than 50% of the total tax assessed for the current year, whichever sum is less.

This Bill limits the class to which the abatement is

available by the following language:

Any person or persons under age 65 years, or whose principal income is derived from Utah public welfare grants, shall not be eligible for relief under this act, unless the county board of Equalization and Extreme Hardship might prevail should such grants not be made and such person or persons be totally disabled. (Emphasis supplied)

The Bill further limits the class who may claim relief

under the act by defining an indigent person as,

Any person whose total yearly income is less than \$1,500.00 and whose residence in which he or she resides for not less than ten months of each year for which he or she requests a property tax exemption has a market or appraised value of not more than \$10,000.00. (Emphasis supplied)

The Petitioners in the case at bar assert that the classification of individuals by the State Legislature on the basis of whether they receive a major portion of their income from public welfare grants or have an income of under \$1,500.00 is arbitrary and violates the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article 1, Section 24 of the Utah Constitution.

It has been repeatedly held that the guarantee of the equal protection of laws means that no person or class of persons shall be denied the same protection of laws which is enjoyed by other persons or other classes in like circumstances, in their lives, liberty and property and in pursuit of happiness. Truax v. Corrigan 257 U.S. 312, 66 L. Ed. 254, 42 S. Ct. 124.

In Senate Bill No. 30 persons who receive a major part of their income from public welfare grants are automatically excluded from relief under the bill even though they are in the same monetary position as a person who receives any part of his income from public moneys, but is still on welfare.

In the case at bar, petitioners Charles Johnson testified that he had a yearly income of less than \$1,500.00. The major part of which came from public welfare grants (Tp. 29). Because of the fact that he received a major portion of his income in the form of grants from public welfare he was denied relief under the act.

Although the income of the petitioner is below that which the Utah legislature has deemed to be the indigent level he is precluded from relief under the act in circumstances in which this act was designed to provide relief merely because of the fact that he must rely on public

welfare for a major part of his sustenance.

The Supreme Court of the United States has held that the Equal Protection Clause requires that in defining a class subject to legislation, the distinctions that are drawn must have some relevance to the purpose for which the classification is made. Rinaldi v. Yeager, 384 U.S. 305, 16 L. Ed. 2d 377, 86 S. Ct. 1497 (1966); Baxstrom v. Herold, 383 U.S. 107, 15 L. Ed. 2d 620, 86 S. Ct. 760 (1966).

In the case at bar the obvious objective of the act is to provide financial relief for persons over 65 or for persons who are totally disabled, by way of an abatement of taxes assessed against property owned by these individuals.

In applying the test as set down in Rinaldi and Baxstrom, Supra, the author is unable to find any relevance between the purpose of the legislation, which is to provide relief for the aged in the low income brackets, and the exclusion of persons in these same income brackets who receive a major portion of their income from public welfare grants.

An individual who receives \$996.00 a year in income primarily from welfare, as does petitioner Johnson (Tp. 28), is in no better financial position than any other person receiving the same amount of income from other sources.

Both are destitute and the petitioner is just as much a member of the poverty class as is another who receives like amount from Social Security or from other sources.

The fact that the State is already contributing in a major way to the income of the petitioner is not a lawful basis for classification of individuals for Relief under Senate Bill 30. Several courts have held in reference to welfare laws,

That protection of the public purse is not a permissible basis under the equal protection clause for differentiating between persons who otherwise possessed the same status. Green v. Department of Public 270 F. Supp. 173 (1967); Smith v. Reynolds 277 F. Supp. 65 (1967).

The petitioner asserts that by limiting relief under the act to these persons who have an income of less than \$1,500.00 the legislature has made an unreasonable classification in violation of the Equal Protection Clause of the XIV Amendment and Article I, Section 7 of the Utah Constitution.

The Supreme Court of the United States in addressing itself to this question held,

. . . (That) the Equal Protection Clause requires more of a State Law than non-discriminatory application within the class it establishes, it also imposes a requirement of some rationality in the nature of the class singled out. Rinaldi v. Yeager 384 U.S. 305, 308, 16 L. Ed. 2d 577, 86 S. Ct. 1497 (1966).

The petitioners assert that there is no rational basis for the classification of individuals for relief under the act based on whether they have an income of less than \$1,500 per year. Petitioners Mikkelson's have an income of \$1,656.00 which they receive in the form of Social Security and public welfare grants.

Mr. Roylance, director of Public Welfare for Weber and Morgan Counties testified (Tp. 57) that the State Legislature through the Public Assistance Act made the determination that a family of two with an annual income of under \$1,656.00 was considered destitute and eligible for public welfare assistance.

Mr. Erikson, the field officer for the Dept. of Agriculture in the Consumer Marketing testified that the State of Utah in conjunction with the federal Government had determined that a family of two with an annual income of less than \$1,848.00 was considered as having an income below sustenance level and therefore qualified for the food stamp program (Tp. 58).

The petitioner asserts that in light of the Public Assistance Act and the state federal official determinations referred to above, the legislature had no reasonable basis

for establishing a \$1,500.00 income level limit on individuals eligible for benefits under Senate Bill 30, and that this classification is arbitrary with no rational basis in fact or law. As a result Senate Bill No. 30 is unconstitutional.

Art. 1, Section 24, Constitution of Utah, specifically provides that, "All laws of a general nature shall have uniform application." The Court has held,

(The) objects and purposes of law present touchstones for determining proper and improper classifications. State v. Mason 94 U. 501, 78 P2 920, 117 A.L.R. 330.

The avowed purpose of this act is to provide tax relief to indigent persons. The legislature after creating a broad group then attempts to subclassify various segments of the general group. It is unconstitutional to create two separate classes of welfare recipients based solely upon the source from which their money is received. The Act also creates separate classes of indigents by the unreasonable subclassification of persons who receive under \$1,500.00 and those who receive over \$1,500.00 but who are still none the less indigent. The Trial Court in its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law specifically found the Plaintiff to "be indeed indigent."



The Statute by its terms creates two classes of indigent persons, one who receives welfare, and one who receives other public funds for assistance such as Social Security, World War I widow allowance or other Veteran Benefits.

## POINT II

SENATE BILL NO. 30 BY ITS TERMS IS INAPPLICABLE TO THE YEAR 1967.

The County Board of Commissioners testified that they had denied applications for relief under Senate Bill No. 30 (Tp. 33, 41) even though it provided that persons applying for relief thereunder must make application before May 1, of the year for which the property tax abatement was sought. Since the Bill did not become effective until May 9 of 1967 (Tp. 20), it was impossible for proper legal application to be filed with the commissioners.

The petitioners assert that Senate Bill No. 30 was not in force in the year 1967 because its effective date prevented the filing of the application for relief as specifically required by the Bill. Consequently all applications denied under Senate Bill No. 30 are invalid and must be reconsidered under Section 59-7-2 of the Utah Code Annotated (1953), which was in force at that time.

## POINT III

THE WEBER COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION REFUSED TO COMPLY WITH THE ORDER OF THE DISTRICT COURT IN APPORTIONING INCOME OF APPELLANTS LUDVIG V. MIKKELSEN AND MARIE MIKKELSEN BUT RATHER APPLIED THE STANDARDS OF THE STATE TAX COMMISSION REQUIRING ALL INCOME OF ALL PERSONS BE USED TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY FOR ABATEMENT.

The District Court in its Finding of Fact and Conclusion of Law specifically found that the \$1,500.00 income limitation applied to an individual and where property was jointly owned the income must be apportioned. (Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law para. 3b) The Decree then ordered the appellants Ludvig V. Mikkelsen and Marie Mikkelsen then be referred back to the Weber County Board of Equalization, which board then denied the abatement application.

The appellants, Mikkelsens, qualified in all categories except for the money limit. The Mikkelsen's were over 65 years of age; the home of the appellants Mikkelsen's was less than \$10,000.00 in value; the majority of their income was not received from Public Welfare; appellants resided in Weber County for at least 10 months of the preceding calendar year. (State Tax Comm. Affidavit)

The Weber County Board of Equalization followed the regulation of the State Tax Commission and denied the Tax Abatement for appellants Mikkelsens, which regulations are contrary to law and court order.

### CONCLUSION

The petitioners assert that based on the above points Senate Bill No. 30 is unconstitutional in that it violates the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment and Article 1, Section 7 and Article 1, Section 24 of the Utah Constitution or in the alternative that it, by its terms was inapplicable to the year 1967 and therefore decisions made thereunder must be set aside and redetermined under 59-7-2 Utah Code Annotative (1963).