1968

Ludvig v. Mikkelsen, Marie Mikkelsen and Charles
L. Johnson v. Utah State Tax Commission and
Weber County Board of Equalization, William S.
Moyes, Chairman : Brief of Respondent

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

Appellants initiated action in the Second Judicial District Court of Weber County as follows:

(1) Petition for a permanent injunction against the Weber County Board of Equalization to restrain said Board from applying Senate Bill 30; and

(2) A class action for a declaratory judgment to have Senate Bill 30 declared unconstitutional, or in the alternative, that the bill be clarified in its application to appellants.

The Utah State Tax Commission moved for dismissal of both the petition and the class action or in the alternative, that if said Motion fail, that Senate Bill 30 be sustained constitutional. The Weber County Board of Equalization sought clarification of Senate Bill 30.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The case was tried to the court, Honorable John F. Wahlquist presiding on the 19th day of June 1967. The court sustained the constitutionality of Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-2 (Supp. 1967), hereinafter referred to as Senate Bill 30; dissolved the temporary restraining order, declared Senate Bill 30 operative in 1967 while using the June 7th filing date of the former law; and ordered that the \$1500.00 income limitation applied to an individual and the total income should be apportioned between husband and wife where the property is jointly owned.

The court signed its Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law and Decree on September 23, 1967, which documents were entered in the records of the Weber County Clerk on September 27, 1967.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Respondents submit that the decision of the lower court in respect to Senate Bill 30 be affirmed if the appeal is not dismissed as requested in Point I, *infra*.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Respondents accept appellants' statement of facts in regard to age of appellants, the income of appellants, and the statute under which appellants applied for their abatement. Respondents also agree with appellants' statements concerning the findings made by the trial court and the subsequent action of the Weber County Board of Equalization.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE APPEAL IS IMPROPERLY BEFORE THE COURT FOR THE REASON THAT THE APPELLANTS HAVE NOT COMPLIED WITH THEIR STATUTORY ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDY.

The action for declaratory judgment should have been dismissed by the lower court on the basis of appellants' failure to exhaust the administrative remedy provided for by statute.

The Utah State Legislature has taken considerable effort to provide relief for taxpayers who feel that their property has been unfairly treated by the various county assessors, and who feel that their protestations have been ignored by the various administrative bodies.

Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-1 (1963) provides that the county board of commissioners of each county shall constitute a county board of equalization which shall meet at specified times for the purpose of equaliz-

ing the assesment of all property within a county and for the purpose of hearing complaints and making the necessary adjustments. Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-2 (1963) provides that this board of equalization may increase or lower the assessment and may also abate the taxes of an indigent person. It is further provided in Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-10 (1963) that any person aggrieved or dissatisfied with the decision of the county board of equalization may appeal to the Utah State Tax Commission for review.

Should the taxpayers make a proper application to the Utah State Tax Commission, they would then have an opportunity to present their argument, asking for a determination of their liability for taxes assessed in view of apparent indigency, and then receive a decision from the Utah State Tax Commission which has appellate power from the various county boards of equalization. Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-10 (1963). Should they be dissatisfied with this appellate determination, they could then file a writ of certiorari to the Utah State Supreme Court asking to have the determination of the Utah State Tax Commission reviewed. **County Board of Equalization of Kane County v. State Tax Comm'n**, 88 Utah 219, 50 P.2d 418 (1935).

The Legislature has also provided an alternative remedy. Utah Code Ann. § 59-11-11 (1963) permits any taxpayer objecting to the "demands for public revenue" to pay said demanded revenue under protest and file an action in any court of com-

petent jurisdiction to recover those taxes he considers unlawfully assessed or paid.

That these administrative or other statutory remedies must be complied with before filing an action for declaratory judgment as was done in this instance is clear:

Declaratory relief is frequently denied in tax cases either on the ground that other adequate remedies exist or that special statutory remedies provided for tax cases are exclusive. The remedy in the state courts is ordinarily considered adequate if the taxpayer may pay his taxes under protest and obtain an enforceable judgment for a refund. Declaratory relief has also been denied where the taxpayer is afforded a complete remedy by a state **statute providing for appeal from an assessment**, where he has a remedy by mandamus, **where the statute provides for review by certiorari of the tax commission's determination**, where there is a specific statutory proceeding for testing tax statutes, . . . (Emphasis added.) 22 Am. Jur. 2d, Declaratory Judgment § 38.

This court in **Shea v. State Tax Comm'n**, 101 Utah 209, 120 P.2d 274 (1941) has stated its agreement with this philosophy:

It is not for the tax commission to determine question of legality or constitutionality of legislative enactments. In cases in which legality or illegality of tax sought to be recovered by taxpayer necessarily involves determination of questions of law calling for exercise of strictly judicial functions, **payment under protest and compliance with other provisions of the statutes afford the exclusive remedy** (Emphasis added.)

POINT II

THE INTERPRETATION BY THE LOWER COURT OF THE APPLICABILITY OF SENATE BILL 30 TO THE YEAR 1967 SHOULD BE AFFIRMED.

The lower court determined that the Legislature intended the filing limitation of Senate Bill 30 to apply only after the bill became law on May 9, 1967; and that the substantive provisions of Senate Bill 30 should be coupled with the filing provisions of the former statute in granting relief. (T. 69)

Appellants state on page 13 of their brief that the application denied under Senate Bill 30 must be reconsidered under Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-2 (1963), which appellants claim was in force in June. That section was in effect repealed on May 9, 1967, when the new amendment became effective. The provisions of the former act could not have had any efficacy after May 9, 1967, and no abatement of any type could have been granted under the repealed section.

The lower court, therefore, was faced with a serious dilemma. The repealed section obviously could not be applied. However, if the May 1st filing date of the present law were strictly applied, no persons seeking abatement under the new provision could be granted relief. The result would be to eliminate abatement of property tax for the indigent for the 1967 calendar year.

The lower court reasoned that such a result

could not have been intended by the Legislature but rather that that body intended the filing limitation to apply after the new provision became law. (T. 69)

Thus the May 1st filing deadline would become applicable in the 1968 calendar year.

Respondents submit that the lower court's interpretation is based on sound reasoning and that said holding should be affirmed.

POINT III

THE HOLDING OF THE LOWER COURT THAT SENATE BILL 30 IS NOT IN VIOLATION OF THE CONSTITUTIONAL REQUIREMENT OF EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAW SHOULD BE AFFIRMED.

The principles stated in the United States Supreme Court cases cited in appellants' brief can be found in the decision of this Court in **State v. Mason**, 94 Utah 501, 198 P.2d 920 (1938). As the **Mason** case has been almost uniformly cited as authority in subsequent Utah State Supreme Court decisions considering equal protection questions, it can rightfully be called a landmark decision.

This Court in **State v. Mason**, supra, set forth certain criteria for determining whether or not a statute challenged on equal protection grounds is constitutional:

1. Any law of necessity discriminates against one group or another in that it includes some within

its application and excludes others from its application;

2. The differentiation between those included and those excluded must not be unreasonable or arbitrary in nature;

3. The reasonableness of the differentiation or discrimination must be directly related to the purpose to be accomplished by the statute.

In addition to these criteria, the **Mason** decision also provides guidelines for judicial perusal of a statute challenged on the grounds of unreasonable and arbitrary classification:

1. In regard to reasonableness, the court cannot substitute its judgment for the judgment of the legislative body.

2. If the court finds a reasonable basis for differentiation, the law must be upheld.

3. There is a difference between a statute's wisdom and its constitutionality.

Respondents do not deny that the purpose of Senate Bill 30 is to provide a relief for certain "indigent" persons. However, it cannot be denied that the Legislature is not required to provide the same type of relief for all persons. The Legislature has been given the power to determine who needs relief and in what form so long as there is some basis for granting a certain type of relief to certain persons classified in need of that type of relief.

A reading of the statute clearly indicates that the Legislature intended to offer a certain monetary boon to persons it considered in need of assistance but who were not presently receiving a monetary boon in the form of welfare grants constituting 50 per cent or more of their income.

It appears that the Legislature concluded that said persons, i.e., those receiving 50 per cent or more of their income from welfare grants, would be placed in a favored position if they were also granted the type of relief contemplated by Senate Bill 30. Respondent submits that such a conclusion is based on sound reasoning and that such conclusion can properly be made by the Legislature.

Respondents fail to see that the definition of an indigent person as one whose income is less than \$1500.00 is an unreasonable or arbitrary classification within the framework of Senate Bill 30.

If it could be shown that all persons over 65 years of age with an income of over \$1500.00 were indigent, the Legislature's determination could probably be declared capricious. That, however, is not the case.

Whether or not the Legislature would have been "wiser" to fix an amount other than \$1500.00 bears little relationship to the constitutional validity of the amount in question.

Appellants' strongest argument would appear to be that in some instances the application of the law might work a hardship on some welfare recipi-

ents whose grants constitute the major portion of their income. Nevertheless, respondents submit that the Legislature was attempting to achieve a balance among persons it deemed indigent by granting a certain type of relief to those not already receiving relief in another form. That the balance achieved may not always be perfect is not a basis for declaring the statute invalid.

POINT IV

THE DETERMINATION BY THE LOWER COURT THAT THE \$1500.00 INCOME LIMITATION APPLIED TO AN INDIVIDUAL AND THAT INCOME MUST BE APPORTIONED WHERE THE PROPERTY IS JOINTLY OWNED SHOULD BE AFFIRMED.

Utah Att'y. Gen. Op. No. 67-058, issued August 15, 1967, and concerning Senate Bill 30 stated as follows:

It is the opinion of this office that the \$1500.00 limitation applied to each individual making application for the abatement. The county board of equalization should examine the facts to determine the actual owners of the property and, if it appears that both husband and wife are the owners, then allow an abatement where each have an income less than \$1500.00.

An earlier opinion dealing with the veteran's exemption determined that a veteran applying for an exemption was entitled to the full exemption even if the property were jointly owned by the veteran and his or her spouse. Utah Att'y. Gen. Op. No. 64-012, Feb. 25, 1964. Respondents submit that the

veteran exemption situation is analogous to the instant case and the reasoning of the cited opinion should be persuasive.

The above opinions appear to be the only guides to interpreting the language of Senate Bill 30.

Respondents submit that the language of the statute is clear and the interpretation of that language by the lower court is correct and should be affirmed.

CONCLUSION

Initially, respondents reiterate the contention that the appeal is not properly before this Court. If, however, the appeal is not dismissed, respondents submit that Senate Bill 30 is not violative of the constitutional requirement of equal protection of the law; therefore, the decision of the lower court on that question should be affirmed.

Based on Point II, respondents urge this Court to affirm the decision of the lower court regarding the application of the June 7th filing date to the 1967 calendar year.

Respondents submit that the language of Senate Bill 30 clearly directs an apportionment of the income with regard to property jointly owned by husband and wife and ask that the lower court's decision on that point be affirmed. Respondents join

appellants in seeking an order from this Court directing the Weber County Board of Equalization to comply with the order of the Second District Court.